AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623

e-mail: avilacsd@gmail.com

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
1 PM Tuesday, February 11", 2025
STAFF AND PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING IN PERSON AT THE
ADDRESS ABOVE OR, VIA TELECONFERENCE AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

Z0O0OM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

In accordance with Government Code Section 54953(b), this agenda will be posted at the above
teleconference location and this location will be accessible to the public.

1. CALL TO ORDER:  1:00 P.M.

2. ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
John Janowicz, Vice President
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director
Ara Najarian, Director

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning District
operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board now. Please state
name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations to 3 minutes. State
law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the agenda.

4, INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department

2. CalFire/County Fire Department
Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest

5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM



6.

7.

9.

10.

CLOSED SESSION
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2).
Number of cases: One.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
and (¢)(3) — Claim by Cheri Linegar [Pursuant to Government Code sections
54956.9(e)(3) and 54957.5(b)(1)&(2)(a), this Claim is available for public inspection at
100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA 93424.]

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION/ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION, IF ANY,
TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of January 14th, 2025, Regular Board Meeting
Monthly Financial Review for January 2025

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Operations Reports for January 2025

SCaw

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

A. Mid-Year Budget Review
(Action Required: Receive Staff Report and Provide Direction to Staff)

B. Annual Review of District By-Laws
(Action Required: Receive Staff Report; Review By-Laws and suggested changes and

provide Direction to staff)

COMMUNICATIONS/ CORRESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director, or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

ADJOURN

The next Regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 11th, 2025 at 1:00 P.M.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board

after the posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The
writing or document will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA
during normal business hours. Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2
requests for disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a
disability who requires the modification or accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public mecting by
contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, January 14th, 2025
1:00 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District, to
order at 1:05 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building, 100 San Luis
Street, Avila Beach, California.

2. OATH OF OFFICE
Directors Kennett and Berry completed their Oath of Office

3. ROLL CALL
Board Members Present Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett
John Janowicz
Kristin Berry
Board Members Present via Zoom: Ara Najarian
Board Members Absent: None
Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
Kristi Dibbern, Office Manager
Operations: Shawn Powell, Chief Plant Operator
Legal Counsel via Zoom: Craig Parton from Price, Postal, & Parma
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None

5. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports

Sheriff’s Report: Sheriff Brad Adams reported 26 calls for service during the month of December. Deputies
conducted/investigated five preventive patrol stops, three general disturbances, and three suspicious circumstances.
Two vandalisms took place in Pirate’s Cove and two enforcement stops were conducted in Avila.

Cal Fire: Chief Lee reported 56 calls for service, 31 were medically related. Two water rescues occurred during
the month of December, one in Private’s Cove and one in Shell Beach. Cal Fire responded to a fire on Ontario
Ridge that was reportedly started by a homeless camp. The fire was quickly contained. The Fire Safe Council meets
January 15, to award grant applicants. The grants for Cal Fire will allow them to continue to build fire breaks and
clear vegetation throughout our area. Chief Lee provided some helpful hints to prevent wildfires from spreading.
He mentioned vegetation management near your property’s structures. For local updates he recommended
downloading a local app such as “Watch Duty” or other fire hazard apps, on your phone. He referenced:
www.readvforwildfires.org, for packing a “go bag”. Having extra medications or prescriptions packed in case of an
emergency are all important preventative measures.




GM Hagemann noted that the San Luis Obispo Chapter of the California Special District Association will meet on
January 23, at 5 PM at Café Roma. District directors are invited to attend. GM Hagemann suggested the Directors
sign up with Kristi Dibbern.

Without objection from the Board, President Kelley moved up the Closed Session Item.
8. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM

NO COMMENTS.

9. CLOSED SESSION
The Board convened to closed session at 1:13 PM to discuss the following items:

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2). Number of cases:
One.

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION/ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION, IF ANY, TAKEN IN
CLOSED SESSION

The Board returned to regular session at 1:54 PM. No reportable action was taken by the Board of
Directors during the closed session.

Out of courtesy to the Waste Connections staff in attendance, and without objection, President Kelley moved
Business Item 10.A. in front of Item 6. Consent Items.

10. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Public Hearing Relating to Solid Waste Rate Increase, Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-01 Solid
Waste Franchise Rate Increase.

President Kelley opened the Public Hearing at 1:55 PM. Staff reported that no protest ballots or comments
had been submitted. President Kelley noted that no members of the public were present in person or on Zoom.
President Kelley closed the Public Hearing at 1:59 PM. and returned the item to the Board for discussion and
consideration of adoption of Resolution No. 2025-01.

After some discussion, Director Kennett made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2025-01, approving the solid
waste rate increase retroactive to January 1, 2025. The motion was seconded by Director Berry and passed with a

roll call vote 4-1.

AYES: Howie Kennett
Kristin Berry
John Janowicz
Pete Kelley

NOES: Ara Najarian

ABSENT: None



Amendment #1 to the Solid Waste Collection Franchise Agreement to include Appendix 1, the Annual Solid
Waste Rate Adjustment Methodology and authorize the General Manager to execute the amended agreement
with South County Sanitation Service/Waste Connections US, Inc.

After some discussion, the Board decided not to take any action on the proposed amendments to the franchise
agreement changes. The Board directed staff to work with District legal counsel and Waste Connections staff and
bring the item back to the Board at the February or March meeting.

Without objection, President Kelley then recommended the Board consider Item 6. approval of the Consent Items.

6. CONSENT ITEMS:

After Board discussion and an opportunity for public comment, Director Janowicz made a motion to approve the
Consent Items. It was seconded by Director Berry and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: John Janowicz
Kristin Berry
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

7. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

10. BUSINESS ITEMS

B. Water Tank Inspection Report. GM Hagemann summarized the staff report, noting that on December 12,
2024, Advanced Technical Services (ATS) inspected and cleaned the District’s Water Tank #1. Hagemann
noted that the District will retain consultants and contractors to accomplish the inspection recommendations,
the most significant (costly) being recoating the exterior of the tank. Staff intends to work with ATS to
prepare the specifications and bid documents for re-coating the tank. The work will likely be scheduled for
the fall of 2025. This was an information item only; no action was taken.

C. Board Committee Appointments for 2025.
After some discussion, the Board agreed by acclamation that Directors would serve on the following

committees:

Financial Committee: Ara Najarian & Kristin Berry
Personnel Committee: John Janowicz & Peter Kelley
Facilities Committee: Howie Kennett & Kristin Berry
Drought Committee: John Janowicz & Ara Najarian

An ad hoc Negotiations Committee for the San Miguelito Mutual Water Company Wastewater Options was added
to the District’s committees. Pete Kelley and John Janowicz will serve on this committee with Kristin Berry as an
alternate committee member in one of their absences.



10. BUSINESS ITEMES (cont.)

D. Board Meeting Schedule for 2025. (Informational Item)
No action was taken. GM Hagemann proposed a schedule for the future Board meetings for 2025.

Regular Meeting January 14, 2025

Regular Meeting February 11, 2025

Special Meeting March 18, 2025 - Special Meeting
Regular Meeting April 8, 2025

Regular Meeting May 13, 2025

Special Meeting June 24, 2025 — Special Meeting
Regular Meeting July 8,2025 - CANCELLED
Regular Meeting August 12, 2025

Regular Meeting September 9, 2025

Regular Meeting October 14, 2025

Special Meeting November 18, 2025- Special Meeting
Regular Meeting December 9, 2025 - CANCELED

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at approximately 2:55 PM.

NEXT MEETING: Tuesday, February 11th, 2025, at 1:00PM.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at their
next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors Y
TN

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager f’/fm

DATE: February 11th, 2025

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for January

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of January, the District deposited $406,336.60 and incurred $159,466.70 in
expenses (cash basis). Expenses this month included $89,733.36 for our annual State Water
payment. Water and sewer revenue for the month of January totaled $76,594.38. Other income
included tax revenue in the amount of $276,922.82.

Detailed financial reports including Balance Sheet, Checks by Fund and Profit and Loss Sheet
are provided for your information for January.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $75,727.87 in water and sewer service. Customer Rate
Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $791.51 in January.



12:27 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

02/05/25 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2025
Jan 31, 25
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 139.35
1008 - Petty Cash 65.72
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 146,263.42
1015 - Five Star Bank Checking 1,070,557.73
1017 - Five Star Bank MM 211,866.99
1050 - LAIF 4,251,615.25
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 5,680,508.46
Total Checking/Savings 5,680,508.46
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 122,184.64
Total Accounts Receivable 122,184.64
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 31,062.36
1270 - Taxes Receivable 30,262.00
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings
1282 - Other 2 El Dorado Billings -19,861.05
1281 - Other 1 El Dorado Billings -4,154.42
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings - Other 131,578.97
Total 1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 107,563.50
Total 1250 - Receivables 168,887.86
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance -8,956.02
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary -8,956.02
Total Other Current Assets B 159,031.84
Total Current Assets 5,962,624.94
Fixed Assets
1670 - Vehicles - Admin
1671 - 2023 Ford F150 Cost 53,960.62
1672 - 2023 Ford F150 Acc Depr -10,792.12
1670 - Vehicles - Admin - Other 286.40
43,454.90

Total 1670 - Vehicles - Admin
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.

Page 1



12:27 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

02/05/25 Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2025

Accrual Basis

1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1605 - Office Equipment

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum Depr

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Jan 31, 25

8,233.58
-22,339.42

-14,105.84

4,526.21
-4,526.21

0.00

60,334.10

1,517,267.58
-593,752.02

923,515.56

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40

6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30

-1,740,709.80

413,388.50

1,087,410.54
-787,343.49

300,067.05

1,938,974.39

21,136.28
-21,136.28

Page 2



12:27 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

02/05/25 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis

As of January 31, 2025

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen/ Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards
2140 - Five Star MC Control x0557
2141 - FS MC BH x8624
2142 - FS MC SP x6340
2143 - FS MC KD x3018
2140 - Five Star MC Control x0557 - Other

Total 2140 - Five Star MC Control x0557
Total Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2240 - Health Insurance

Jan 31, 256

0.00

1,270,572.25
-786,988.91

483,583.34

483,583.34

82,207.29
-54,626.21

27,581.08

4,475,390.83

6,911,423.80

6,954,878.70

82,628.00

82,628.00

13,000,131.64

193,478.86

193,478.86

67,645.91
29,531.78
5,681.70
-04,427.89

8,431.50

8,431.50

2,766.15

Page 3



12:27 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

02/05/25 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2025
Jan 31, 25
2241 - Employee 10,920.00
Total 2240 - Health Insurance 10,920.00
2250 - PERS Liability 1,400.40
2260 - Vacation Payable 5,441.96
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued 2,818.66
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities 23,347.17
2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held 7,640.00
Total 2300 - Deposits Held 7,640.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 30,987.17
Total Current Liabilities 232,897.53
Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability 149,160.00
2450 - U.S. Bank Loan WWTP 2,497,679.03
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources 22,819.00
2999 - Unbalanced Classes -133,455.52
Total Long Term Liabilities 2,536,202.51
Total Liabilities 2,769,100.04
Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity -17,611.15
3900 - Retained Earnings 7,620,312.04
3999 - Prior Period Adjustment FY 23 2,195,322.62
Net Income 433,008.09
Total Equity 10,231,031.60

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

13,000,131.64




| abeyd

€C°GIG'EL  GLE “uswhed asey) - 0Z1LG yosjuswAied $20Z/62/10 %29y
8G°LLS'SL  L6'L uswhed asey) - 0Z1LS§ yosjuswAed 6202/62/10 %o9YD
19'60G'SL 0L ""uawAhed aseys - 024 yosjuswAed 6Z0Z/82/10 }o8y9
#S'80G'€L  00°G90'L “"IBAUOYD UIWPY - POSO G20z I1S1E - Is| Aenuer Joge| JoeU0D uuewusisoy esele]  6YOY S20T/LT/LO Flel1llg)
vo'ebpP'Zl  ep0gee "D O JBIS 9AlH - OPLZ Aedoiny O S4 piedseisey IS aNd 143 S202/ST/LO eyo
socLL's v8'¢c “ruswihed aseyd - 0Z1LS yosjusliied §c0e/ee/Lo Ao3yo
LZ'60L'6 €118 “uswihed eseud - 0ZLS yosjuswied S20Z/ET/L0 %99y
80'820'6 €02l uedwo) SY3d - 062S umeysg g nsuy pd 0o PPy ey sesfoldwg oygnd 143 §20Z/ET/LO o8yo
S0'9L0'6 25'9.8 Ayger] sy3d - 052¢ UMeYS ZX 9Z'8er$ mey sesholdwgonand 143 S202/ET/L0 %o9yd
€5'6€L'S oLy Aypiger sY3d - 0522 nsUM Zxg€.802¢ ey seafoidwzongnd 143 SZ0Z/ET/LO ¥o8uyo
10zl GECL “uedwo) SY3d - 052 UMBYUS B IISUY Pd 0D IPPY ey seafoldw oignd 143 SZ0Z/ET/LO %9940
2601, 8126 Aypgen] syad - 0522 umeys Zx 68'coy $ aey seafholdwzoygnd 143 GZ0Z/ET/L0 Boayo
¥6°182°9 v oLY Ayngen] sy¥3d - 0522 NSUM ZXx0Z'60Z$ ey seafoidwgongnd 143 §20Z/ET/LO %o8YD
¥S'L2€'9 26'L uswihed esey) - 0ZLS yosjuswiied §202/22/10 %8y
Z9'69¢'9 05°20Z°'L Buyunoody - 2019 SZyL'L Z6LE # AUl Budeaspjoog elbuga pMIN  b¥O¥ §Z02/22/L0 w8y
ZL'/9L's 06'68L diys 3 obeisod - Zyl9 GzZ/e/L @leg uny | ‘'saibojouyoal aAeRI)  £p0F  GZ0Z/ZZ/LO N8y
Z9'186'y 06'981 “diyg g obeisod - ZL9  ¥Z/6TZ/LL @1eq uny SZ/vL/L 890005202 ANI | ‘seibojouyoa) saneard  €¥0V  §20Z/2¢/L0 ¥o8yo
LPeL'Y 00'0ZL'L " Joge PeNuUO) - g0G9 e IOBIUOD 20T ‘WIBT - GL 980 9T ‘AUl sejeloossy g uuewsbeH  Lyoy  §202/22/L0 Pl
ZLp19' 00°0ZL'L " JogeT Joenuo) - 9059 “ZOT ‘pL-L 98Q S82IAMISS D JOge| 19BJUCD  S8jeIossY g uuewsbed  0vOy  §Z0Z/22/L0 %8y
2L¥55'2 #2°60€ sellN - 0659 22130 12MISIA IS SN UeS 001 I39d 143 §202/L2/L0 NEITT)
86V 6t'L “uswihed eseyd - 0ZLS yosjuswied SZ0Z/LZ/L0 %98y
6V EVZT oL’y “uewihed asey) - 0Z1LS yosjualuAed S20Z/LLIL0 %o8yo
6€2VZ'e iy “uswhed aseyy - 0Z1LS yosjuswied SZ0Z/9LIL0 »o8yo
Z1'eee'e eVl “uswihed ssey) - 021§ yossuawhed GZOTZ/SLILO %8y
69'9€2'2 S6°C “'uswihed sseys - 0Z1LS yosjuswied GZ0Z/SL/10 ¥o2y9
v2'€€2'C 62'S “uswhed aseys - 0ZLS yosjuawAed GZOT/PL/LO NoayD
sv'8ee'e €L¢ “uswhed aseyy - 0ZLS yosjuswihed 6202/01/10 %o8y9
2L82TT S6°02P pNo| 8210AU] - OFLS $89} Jueyo.IaU PNo|Y a210AU| PNoj9a21oAY| 6Z02/60/10 %o8yd
11908'L 0T “uswhed aseyd - 0215 yosjuswied 6Z0Z/80/L0 %o8y)H
16'208'L 10} ""uewAhed aseyd - 0ZLS yosjuswied S20Z/80/10 ¥o8y9
05°108°'L 0€'2 “uswhed asey)d - 0Z15 yoajuawAed 6Z02/L0/10 %o8yo
02'662°L 686 “uswhed asey) - 0ZLS yosawAed 6202/90/10 ¥98y9
GE'68L°L 0001 Xawy - 011§ ras1Q ssaidx3 ueonawy 6202/90/10 ¥o8yo
Ge'6LL'1 ge'6l “uswhed eseyd - 0Z15 yosjuswied $202/90/10 3o8y9
000921 0062 aoueuBUIB - 2159 Bujues|) souex3 ‘09 Bulues|p suseon oy 5Z02/90/10 #o9yod
00'SEL'L 00'G9L aoueUBUIBK - ZTYSO aoueUBUIB 2210 ‘00 Buiues|p suipsec) oy GZ0Z/90/1L0 %o9yd
00°045'L 06295 “rORIUOD UIWPY - $0G9 YT LE/ZL—-L/Z) JogeT oenuo) uuewss)soly esasel  ZeOv  §202/20/10 %Yo
05°200°} 05°200°L Bununoooy - 2019 vZ'LE'TL 18LE # AUl Buidesyyoog sjfug bBIN  620F  §202/20/10 ¥o8yo
uiupy / jelausd)
asuejeg junowy N0y T auweN wnN ajeq adAy
gzoz Arenuer
SHUNO2IY/M pun4 Aq s)o3Y9) §2/50/20

I0MISI S921IAI9S AjUnwiwo) yoeag ejiAy



Z abey

€0°0LE'LE  £0'0LE'LE Kreyues [ejo
€0°0£°1E 85656 s[ealwayQ - £0S9 STET'L LYB06YIdE ‘ou| ‘ooed Bejuusig LSOV SZOZ/OE/L0 YD
SYOLP'0E  Z9°0L g dey "dinb3 - 2ZS9 " GZ/9/L SY/LYBSOOANI 61+91L6:# Jawoisny ¥ooqenid YSN  8v0v S202/2Z/L0  oeud
8/66E'0E  0Z'965°C BuipueH spios - 0859 ¥2° 1€l BullpueH spIoS £16€. AUl ouj ‘'speeds  LpOF  S20Z/TZLO0  NRUD
85'€08'22  00°€lLZ'Z s)s91 e - 0pS9 ST'€') ¥OLOGZY AUl Busa] ge g [elUSWUOIAUT PIRYIO  9¥O0Y  S202/2Z/L0 OeYD
85°065'S 000 g dey 'dinb3 - 2zZG9 TNEIS W ' LEZL 1008 10RIUOD /by AU| OMIAN  SWOY S202/2Z/L0  Hodud
8508562 00°02L'Z " J0ge JOBHUOY - /069 WoysAS IUES JogeT JoeNUOD  Sojeldossy g uuewsbeH  LyOy  §Z0Z/ZZ/L0 994D
86°0/8'72 00°02L'C " 10/ J9BAUOD - L0G9 waysAs lues Joge| joeluOD  sajeoossy g uuewsbeH  OpOy  §Z0Z/ZZ/LO  O9UD
85'06L'0Z 85851 sanIiN - 0659 Z-8€2ZEYBEEO #1098 UONBIS Y 389d 143 S20Z/LIA0  MHoBuD
00'Z66'6L  /6'G08'9 SN - 06S9 T G-L666LTHOVO # JOOB JUBId JSJeAN 23S 3894 143 S20Z/LYL0  dfosud
€098lL'cl 000 $994 9 SIULAd - G559 " LAM B UOHEIS JIT §99NS ISIi4 600L 100V "D UOHNIod Y 0D O1S  6E0F  SZOZ/SL/LO  Mo8uD
€0'98L°€L 000 S994 '@ SHUISd - GGG PE ‘AU B00L 199V G-GEOLH HULR dIMM O UonNIlod Y 0D 0TS BE0F  SZOZ/EL/IL0  MP9uD
€0'98L'CL  SZ'SLO'L $994 ¢ SHWIRd - GGG9 " LAMA '3 UOUBIS UIT18a1S ISl 6001 100y "D uonniiod AV 00 0TS 8E0F  SZOZ/SLIL0  ¥o8ud
8/°0/LCL  06'962'L $994 B SIULAd - G659  “HT ‘AUI 600 100V O-GEOL# IUIAd dIMM D UOBNIOd Y 0D 0TS 8SO0F  SZOZ/SL/LO  Moeud
88'€/80L  00°SCH " JOQET JOBJUOY - G0GO aeday M duwind jusny3 Jojopn [eaibol opAH  JE0v  GZ0Z/90/L0  O8UD
88'8¥y'0L 00089 “ Joge] 19BNUOD - GOGY Ul pue dn ues|D Jafles| sHed aieds [enud jealbo OIPAH €0V G20Z/90/L0  O8UD
88'89/'6  8.°98Y%'L - g doy "dinb3 - Zzg9 (82°98%'L $) [eg 1D Jwd1aAQ OMIAN  9€0F S20Z/20/L0  Mo8ud
012828  0S2L6 g "dey "dinb3 - zzg9 0S°ZL6 $ ¥T'LETL 6Lbb # AU| OYIAN  9€0v SZ0Z/20/L0  o8ud
09'69€°L  0SZLL'L 09 Alojejnbay - G969 10ge] JOBNUOD ¥Z'€T°ZL S080VTL OT1'seoIMeS 0J8H  €€0F  SZ0Z/Z0/L0 %O®YD
01'252'9  00°6H8 09 AiojenBay - 5969 100 19eRU0D $Z'€ZTT) 901 LYZL OT1'seomMeS 0I8H  £€0v  SZ0Z/Z0/L0 Mo8YD
0LL0b'S  ¥6'6E8 s[ealway? - £059 YZ'6L°ZL ZPSE8Yidg ‘ou| ‘oyioed Bejuuslg  0EOv  SZOZ/ZO/L0  OBUD
oL/98'v  9L'Z6EY $094 @ SHUIRd - G569 T JOJBM [enuuY $20Z°Z) 9566v0L-NS AUl pleog ;oM BlBIS 820  SZ0Z/ZO/L0  O8UD
00°S.1 00°S.1 “'sesl g 10 1ed - G269 “euuod ANnN deld 8NS vz’ L2 ZL J¥8EAY| ‘ou| 'dnoi edellepy  LZ0v 202720710 N %09Y9

ejiueg

L6°G02'L 26'S02Z'L sybi ejoL
L6'60Z'L 086kl - 0659 0-29€551. 2666 # 1098 subry AucjoD 389d 143 SZOT/LE/L0  ¥oRUD
/1'950'L  $9'80G - 0659 £-¥869.60690 # 102€ S)ybI umo | 399d 143 S20Z/LE/N0  doeud
25°L¥S 25°LYS solN - 0659 £-90959/96/ #1008 SjyBI 1S juoid 399d 143 S20Z/LZLO v_mw;o

sy61

G0'688'8L  S0'688'8l uIIpY / [BiBUSS) [€J0 |
S0688'8L LT “"uswAed aseyd - 0zZ1LS yosjuatuhed GZ0Z/0S/L0  ¥O8YD
€6'988'8L  09'LE'S “JO / SUL UYBSH - 2p2S " LLOL # JOqWIBI Su| yesH §Z0Z Alenigad YIeSH YNYAS  HOV  SZ20Z/0€/L0  Mo8yd

aosuejeg junowy JUN029Y owsapy - aweN wnN aleq adA}

6Z0zZ Aenuer

SHIUN0IIY/M pund Aq s)20Y) §2/50/20

JoUISIQ S2IAIRS Alunwwo) yoeag elIAyY



¢ abey

0L°99%'6SL  0L'99P'651 aviol
S9°100'80L  $9'100'80) 19%e/ fejoL
mﬂﬂoo_wor 097212 09 Aiojeinbay - Gog9 6209510 ‘AUl “"olAU3 Aunog sIn ues 0S0t S¢20¢/LE/L0 H_/YD
S0'68.°20L 04'69 oD Alojeinbay - 6959 6709510 AUl 9ZPR000HY UONDBUUOD SS0ID  TUONAUT Aunod sin ueg 0S0F §20</L¢/L0 NIB/YD
GE'€ZL.0L 05069t "'g3 9ye zedo - €LY GZ/8/1 826612 "AUl LO000-SZHYE Bll4 ] Buled B 19)s0d ‘@dld rovr  §202/22/10 A38UYD
G8'2E0'c0lL 00096 T logen joenuoyd - L0S9 wajsAg Jejepn J0ge JoeNuo)  SaleInossy B uuewabey LPOt G202/Z2/10 HIBYD
§8'220'20L 000ZL'L 7 logeT joequod - 1069 wa)sAg Jajen 10Ge| JORAJUOD  SBJRIN0SSY @ Uuewabe 0vo¥F G20¢/2e/Lo heChte)
G8'ZS6°'00L 66°2LC saninn - 0699 Buipueq saeg 121 F§0d 143 &G20e/Le/Lo Yo3YD
98'6.9'00L 29/GE°LL Bjlep Bl - G089 T WBnoid sebieyd @OM B 9400718 G202 SO aland Aunod O1S Se0y S202¢/20/1L0 pielle)
6122’68 00°00L°L I18)eMA @jels - G089 Sies A iolid douejeg gOM ® D401S  SHOM aland Aunoed 018 Se0r 6202/20/10 ¥99yo
6122288 erevlLie- 19jep 9ielS - G089 SIea A Joud JIpaln  SHIOAA Aand Aunod 01S Se0r §¢0¢/20/1L0 3oayH
29°69¢°L6 0t'209'99 I1S1EAA 9)Bl1S - G089 19jep\ 91e1S GZ0Z LLBZ'AUl  SHIOM dlland Auno) O1S geor §¢0¢/c0/L0 X8y
22'e9l've zi918'el Blep 2)e1S - 9089 ¥2-€20Z Bullaayn Jaiepn 21els 9001 ‘AUl SHIOAA 21lgnd Alunod 0TS veob G20¢/20/L0 3o8YY
05'9¥6°0L 0S°ZLLL 00 Aoje|nbay - G969 vZeeel £080vCL 071 'sedineg oleH €e0y §20¢/20/L0 ¥BYD
00628°6 0098 09 Alojeinbay - 6959 A TAAR AR AN 0711 ‘s@d1neg oisH €e0v §20¢/¢0/10 XI9YD
00'786'8 00868 "W g dey “dib3 - yZg9  uondadsu| juel JBjep FZ'8L°ZL SL2Z0L AUl S [edluyoa ] abejueapy Le0y §20¢/c0/1L0 30/4YD
1918
asuejeg  junowy JUN022Y oway aweN wnN ajeq CadAy
gzoz fenuep
SJUNO22y/M pund Aq syoays $2/50/20

19M3S1g S921AI8S AJlUnWwo) yaeag eJIAy



12:25 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
02/05/25 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2025

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4030 - County Taxes
4600 - Interest Income

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5212 - Holiday Pay
5213 - Overtime Pay
5214 - Sick Pay
5216 + Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5255 - PERS Co Pd Shawn
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense - Ot...

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

Jan 25

76,594.38
3,139.09
276,922.82
49,680.31

406,336.60

406,336.60

406,336.60

10.00
149.83
420.95

580.78

15,380.32
1,606.04
0.00
396.84
0.00

17,383.20
438.43

7,321.60

7,321.60

922.65
424.54
24.38

1,371.57

Page 1



12:25 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
02/05/25 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2025

5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.

Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses
6000 - Administrative Overheads

6102 - Accounting
6120 - Dues & Subscriptions
6135 - Legal
6137 - Lopez Lake ESA Litigation

Total 6135 - Legal

6140 : Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 - Rate Assistance
6160 - Training

6167 - Uniforms

6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads
6500 + Operating Expenses

6503 - Chemicals

6504 - Admin Contract Services

6505 - Contract Labor O & M

6506 - Contract Labor GM

6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer

6518 - Equipment Expense

6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
6528 - Gas & Oil

6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6565 - Regulatory Compliance

Jan 25

280.28
26,795.08

2,210.00
327.87

4,690.50

4,690.50

395.45

369.98

765.43

791.51
160.00
223.36
249.00

9,417.67

1,799.52
1,627.50
1,105.00
2,240.00
7,520.00
3,5653.95

2,409.95

10,104.00

12,513.95

175.00
385.93
2,869.46
2,213.00
404.00
153.29
6,704.31
4,203.30

Page 2



12:25 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
02/05/25 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 2025

Jan 25

6572 - Security

6575 - Small Tools

6580 - Solids Handling
6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

6591 - Yard Maintenance

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

6800 - Water
6805 - State Water

727.20
20.10
2,596.20
249.96
8,926.57

407.25

60,395.49

89,733.36

Total 6800 - Water

89,733.36

186,922.38

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7000 - Other Income

219,414.22

782.21

Total Other Income

782.21

Net Other Income

782.21

Net Income

220,196.43

Page 3






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors =<y
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
DATE: February 11, 2025

SUBJECT: General Manager Report

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Advisory Committee

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee will meet on Thursday, February 13, 2025. The
agenda packet for the February 13 meeting was not available when I prepared this Report. As
of this writing (February 6, 2025), the Lopez reservoir remains at 91% of capacity with 45,050
AF in storage. The SLO County rain gauges reported that the Lake received approximately one
inch of rain from the Feb 4™ storm. Additional rainfall is anticipated on Thursday and/or Friday
of this week. Since the ground is so dry, I do not anticipate a significant amount of run-off into
the lake until we receive 4 — 6 inches of rain. However, as I reported in January, with the
previous two years of above average annual rainfall our local and state water supplies are in
good shape for at least the next several years.

State Water Subcontractors Committee

State Water Table A allocation increase — In late January the State Department of Water
Resources sent a Memo to State Water Contractors advising them that the 2025 “Table A”
allocation has been increased from 15% to 20%. This means that the County Allocation for
2025 will be at least 5,000 AF (25,000 AF x 20%). The allocation may increase, depending on
the amount of snow and rain we receive for the rest of the year. The State Department of Water
Resources Memo is provided as an attachment to this report.

The next meeting of the State Water Subcontractors Committee is scheduled for February 7,
2025. The meeting agenda is provided as an attachment to this Report.



Docusign Envelope 1D: D3368127-FO07C-43E4-961A-2249C86EF674

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES California Natural Resources Agency

State of California
CALIFORNIA STATE WATER PROJECT

NOTICE TO STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS

Date: January 28, 2025
Number: 25-01

Subject: Increase of State Water Project 2025 Allocation to 20 Percent

From:

John Yarbrough
Deputy Director, State Water Project
Department of Water Resources

With the northern part of California receiving above average precipitation through the end
of December 2024, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) is increasing the State
Water Project (SWP) allocation from 15 percent to 20 percent of most State Water Project
(SWP) contractors’ requested Maximum Annual Table A Amounts for 2025, as shown in
Attachment A — 2025 SWP Allocation. DWR may revise the SWP allocation if water supply

conditions change.

To determine the available SWP water supplies, DWR considers factors including SWP
contractors’ 2025 carryover supplies and 2025 demands, existing storage in SWP
conservation facilities, estimates of future runoff, SWP operational and regulatory
requirements from the Federal Endangered Species Act and California Endangered
Species Act, and water rights obligations under the State Water Resources Control

Board’s authority.

To schedule SWP water deliveries under this allocation, DWR will develop the 20 percent
water delivery schedules by prorating the 30 percent schedules submitted by the SWP
contractors in October 2024 (as part of initial requests) or as revised with any subsequent
updates. If an SWP contractor foresees any changes to their water delivery schedule,
please communicate such changes to DWR in a timely manner.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at
John.Yarbrough@water.ca.gov.

Attachment A: 2025 State Water Project Allocation, updated January 28, 2025

DWR 9625 (Rev. 3/12) Page 1 of 1



Docusign Envelope ID: D3368127-F07C-43E4-961A-2949C86EF674

Attachment A

2025 STATE WATER PROJECT ALLOCATION

Updated
January 28, 2025

SWP Contractors

Maximum Annual
Table A Amount
(Acre-Feet)

Approved Table A
Allocation
(Acre-Feet)

Approved
Allocation as a
Percentage of
Maximum Annual

Tabie A Amount
(1) (2) (3) = (2)/(1)
FEATHER RIVER
County of Butte 27,500 6,000 ~22%
Plumas County FC&WCD 2,700 540 20%
City of Yuba City 9,600 | - 3,360 35%
Subtotal _ 39,800 79,900 | o
NORTH BAY
Napa County FC&WCD 29,025 10,159 35%
Solano County WA 47,756 16,715 = 3%%
Subtotal 76,781 26,874
SOUTH BAY
Alameda County FC&WCD, Zone 7 80,619 16,124 20%
Alameda County WD 42,000 8,400 20%
Santa Clara Valley WD 100,000 20,000 20%
Subtotal 222,619 44,524 ]
SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY
Oak Flat WD 5,700 1,140 20%
County of Kings 9,305 1,861 20%
Dudley Ridge WD 41,350 8,270 20%
Empire West Side ID 3,617 724 20%
Kern County WA 982,730 196,546 20%
Tulare Lake Basin WSD 86,854 17,371 20%
| Subtotal 1,129,556 225,912 o
CENTRAL COASTAL
San Luis Obispo County FC&WCD 25,000 5,000 20%
| Santa Barbara County FC&WCD - 45486 | 9,098 - 20%
Subtotal 70,486 14,098
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 144,844 28,969 20%
Santa Clarita Valley WA 95,200 19,040 20%
Coachella Valley WD 138,350 27,670 20%
Crestline-Lake Arrowhead WA 5,800 1,160 20%
Desert WA 55,750 11,150 20%
Littlerock Creek ID 2,300 460 20%
Metropolitan WDSC 1,911,500 382,300 20%
Mojave WA 89,800 17,960 20%
Palmdale WD 21,300 4,260 20%
San Bernardino Valley MWD 102,600 20,520 20%
San Gabriel Valley MWD 28,800 5,760 20%
San Gorgonio Pass WA 17,300 3,460 20%
‘Ventura County WPD B B 20,000 | 4,000 | 20%
Subtotal 2,633,544 526,709 |
TOTAL 4,172,786 848,017 ~20%




SWSAC MEMBER AGENCIES: SLOCFC&WCD, CSA 16 (SHANDON), CMC, COUNTY OPS CENTER, CUESTA COLLEGE, CITY OF MORRO BAY,
CITY OF PISMO BEACH, OCEANO CSD, AVILA VALLEY MWC, AVILA BEACH CSD, SAN MIGUELITO MWC, SAN LUIS COASTAL USD

Notice of Meeting

STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Library Conference Rm., City/Co. Library ~ 995 Palm St., 5an Luis Obispo, CA 93401
Friday, Feb. 7, 2025 - 10:00 - 11:30 AM

For agenda packet attachments and more information: https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Public-
Works/Committees-Programs/State-Water—Proiect-and-Subcontra ctors-Advisory-Co.aspx

Chair: Greg Kwolek (Morro Bay)
Vice Chair: Brad Hagemann (Avila Beach CSD)

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER - Roll Call & Quorum Count
PUBLIC COMMENT - For matters not on the agenda, within the Committee’s jurisdiction. Limited to 3 minutes

N =

each.
3. MEETING MINUTES
Staff Recommendation: Approve the Minutes from Dec. 2024.
4. SELECTION OF 2025 SWSAC OFFICERS
Staff Recommendation: Nominate and Approve Chair and Vice Chair for 2025.
5. REPORTS FROM THE DISTRICT
A. Water Supply & Delivery Operations
Staff Recommendation: Informational Item Only.
B. Update on the 2024 Westside Water Transfer
Staff Recommendation: Informational item Only.

C. DCP Planning Update

Staff Recommendation: Informational item Only.
D. Water Management Working Group Update
Staff Recommendation: Informational Item Only.
E. Update on the Draft Policy (SWP Priorities and Criteria for Use)
Staff Recommendation: Informational; consider calling for a special meeting on March 7, 2025, to take action
on the proposed policy updates before they are presented to the District Board of Supervisors.
REPORTS FROM SUBCONTRACTORS (FOR INFORMATION ONLY)
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
DATE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING (Friday, May 2, 10:00-11:20a)
ADJOURNMENT

© 0N

Attachments
Agenda item 3 - Draft Minutes, Dec. 2024

Agenda Item 4 - Bylaws and Current Members List
Agenda Item 5.A - Staff Report

Agenda Item 5.B - Staff Report

Agenda Item 5.C - Staff Report

Agenda Item 5.E - Policy References

Agenda Item 8 - 2025 Calendar

Nowmrrwn=

CONTACT: Please contact SWSAC Secretary, Wes Thomson, with any questions: wthomson@co.slo.ca.us or
(805) 781-5252. All Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations shall be promptly reviewed and resolved.




SWSAC Minutes, 12/06/2024

1120 Mill Street,
San Luis Obispo, CA

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 06, 2024

STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

(DRAFT FOR REVIEW)
Chair: Greg Kwolek (absent)
Vice Chair: Brad Hagemann
Secretary: Wes Thomson

The following minutes are listed as they were acted upon by the State Water Subcontractors
Advisory Committee (SWSAC) and as listed on the Regular Meeting agenda for December 06, 2024,
together with staff reports and related documents attached thereto and incorporated therein by

reference.

1. CALLTO ORDER & ROLL CALL - Call to order at approx. 10:05 AM; quorum was established (5
or more Members present).

Representative Agency
Nola Engelskirger CSA 16 Shandon

Cindy Treichler County Ops Center
Scott DeMello Cuesta

Peter Brown Oceano C5D
Dwayne Chisam San Miguelito MWC
Brad Hagemann  Avila Beach CSD
Kate Ballantyne District

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: None

3. REVIEW OF LAST MEETING'S MINUTES
Staff Recommendation: Approve the Minutes from Sept. 2024.
- The minutes are from September 13, 2024. Dwayne Chisam motioned to approve the
minutes, Nola Engelskirger seconded, all in favor. Meeting minutes were approved by a

simple verbal vote.

4. SET DATES FOR THE 2025 CALENDAR
Staff Recommendation: Approve the Proposed 2025 SWSAC Calendar.
Peter Brown motioned to approve the 2025 Calendar, Chisam seconded, all in favor. The 2025

SWSAC Calendar was approved by a simple verbal vote.

5. UPDATE ON COUNTY GSD STUDY: “PASO BASIN SWP SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPLY”
Staff Recommendation: Informational item Only.
- Terry Erlewine, currently working with Blaine Reely with SLO County GSA'’s in the Paso Basin,
presented the recent updates on the GSD Study for the Paso Basin SWP Supplemental Supply.
Erlewine gave a brief overview of how the Paso Basin could be used to store water and decrease

STATE WATER PROJECT / SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT



SWSAC Minutes, 12/06/2024

the chances of water loss due to spill; showing the available capacity of Reaches 31A& 33At0

support delivery to the Paso Basin with available capacity in Reach 33B constrained in the months

of May-September due to the higher deliveries to the rest of the Coastal Branch. He also

discussed the cost comparison of the water delivered to the Paso Basin depending on the level of

compensation or cost recovery that is decided upon.

Chisam noted that current subcontractors have made a considerable investment in the SWP and

that the costs charged for the ability to deliver this water to others is an equity issue that would

need to be addressed (i.e., what is fair compensation for use of the conveyance capacity).

- Erlewine discussed the project Alternatives - delivery of SWP as treated or raw water. The raw
water pipeline option has the major advantage of not being subject to the capacity issues on

Reach 33B.

6. REPORTS FROM THE DISTRICT
A. Water Supply & Delivery Operations:

Staff Recommendation: Informational item Only.
Wes Thomson reported that based on the 2024 allocation at 40%, current Subcontractor demand,

and carryover from previous year, the District will be going into 2025 with around 6400 AF of
carryover. The initial allocation for 2025 is 5% and the state forecasts indicate there are about
equal chances of seeing a wet or dry year ahead.

Thomson noted the new Golden Mussel detection in the Delta and that the state (both DWR and
CDFW) is now monitoring the presence of this invasive species and considering ways to control or
mitigate its impact to the regions served by the SWP. The mussels can grow very quickly and clog
pipelines and/or significantly impair the operational capability of water conveyance infrastructure.

B. Westside Water Transfer Update
Staff Recommendation: Informational Item Only.
- Thomson reported that it is expected that the Westside will take the full amount of water

made available: DWR is coordinating approval of the agreement among the parties; the
District expects to have another update at the next meeting.

C. DCP Planning Update
Staff Recommendation: Informational item Only.
- Thomson reported that the next funding round request to the Board of Supervisors has been

pushed to January; discussed the costs of the planning for 2026-27 at about $37/AF. Thomson
reiterated the primary objective of the project is to protect reliability of SWP water delivery to
SLO County. Additionally, SWP provides geographic diversity to our water supplies, not only
with our connection to the SWP supply, but with the connections to other SWP Contractors.

D. Water Management Group Update
Staff Recommendation: Informational Item Only.
- Thomson briefly discussed the continued effort of the working group with respect to the Draft

Policy and priority/criteria for use.

E. Update on the Draft Policy (SWP Priorities and Criteria for Use)

Staff Recommendation: Informational Item Only.
- Thomson reported that the target Board date is May 6, 2025.

7. REPORTS FROM SUBCONTRACTORS: None.

STATE WATER PROJECT / SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT



SWSAC Minutes, 12/06/2024

8. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: None.
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING - February 7th, 2025, at 10:00 AM.

10. ADJOURNMENT - Hagemann adjourned the meeting at approximately 11:15 AM.

-- DRAFT MINUTES BY: JT/ WT

STATE WATER PROJECT / SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 3






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FER.1997

SUBJECT: January 2025 Operations and Maintenance Report

Compliance
There were no compliance issues for the month of January. The January 2025 Self-Monitoring Reports

and associated data tables and graphs are provided as an attachment to this report.

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Staff ordered the first two items from the MBR critical spare parts list. These items have an 8 -12 week
lead time, so it was prudent to get them ordered and in stock well before we need them. Staff will continue
to identify critical spare parts for the MBR unit and order the critical pumps, valves, fittings etc., that have
a lead time that may jeopardize our ability to adequately treat the wastewater.

In addition, the staff collaborated with GSE Construction to obtain quotes for various essential
maintenance tasks. These tasks include recoating the primary clarifier effluent launder, recoating the
influent lift station, and repairing a broken sprocket on the secondary sedimentation #2 gear drive. We
received the quotes a few days ago and we reviewing them.

Staff is also working with Cloacina to address the remaining punch list items for the MBR Warranty. To
complete the warranty work, Cloacina plans to temporarily shut down the MBR for a few days. To ensure
compliance with permit requirements during this shutdown period, most of the daily plant flow will be
redirected to the trickling filter. This proactive measure guarantees that our biological system remains
sufficient to meet all permit conditions.

Wastewater Collection System
Mainline Utility Company spent four days performing the annual sewer collection system cleaning.
Mainline cleaned the entire gravity collection system, totaling approximately 7,000 linear feet of sewer

main.

Water System
Staff worked with the developer on Colony Drive to oversee the relocation of a water service, and an

upgrade of the curb stop. With the assistance of a contract worker, staff inspected, serviced, flushed and
exercised approximately 70% of the District owned fire hydrants. The remaining 30% will be inspected
and serviced within the next 60 days.

On January 16, 2025, the State Division of Drinking Water transmitted our water system Sanitary Survey
Inspection Report. Staff has already addressed the required follow-up action to replace the cathodic
protectors on Tank #1. A copy of the Report Transmittal letter is provided as an attachment to this report.
Staff will provide a written response to the report by February 14%,



Water Boards  Ayila Beach Community Services District 2024 Sanitary Survey

g Gavin Newsom
| Govesnoa

o~

CALIFONNIA \4\‘ SY:;‘AES‘::gL‘R
watel' Boards v ENVIRONMENTAL

State Water Resources Control Board
Division of Drinking Water

January 16, 2025

Attn: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Subject: System Number 4000222 - 2024 Sanitary Survey Inspection

Dear Mr. Hagemann,

Thank you to your team’s cooperation shown during the Avila Beach Community Services District’s
(hereinafter Avila Beach) water system inspection conducted on November 22, 2024. The inspection was
conducted by Dylan Kitao and Teagan Singer, Water Resource Control Engineers, with the Division of
Drinking Water (hereinafter DDW), and in attendance from Avila Beach was Shawn Powell (Operations

Supervisor) and yourselif.

The routine inspection of the drinking water system was part of a Sanitary Survey and included examining
the source, treatment, storage, and pump facilities. In addition to the water system inspection, this
Sanitary Survey included a review of the distribution system, routine monitoring and reporting to the
DDW, water system management and operations, and operator compliance with State requirements. The
purpose of the Sanitary Survey is to identify any health concerns related to the water system and to assess
the overall construction, operation, maintenance, and management of the water system.

Based on the recent field inspection and review of DDW files, items were identified that require attention
to increase the reliability and safety of the water system and to meet all applicable regulations. These
items are summarized below and are further discussed in the enclosed Sanitary Survey Inspection Report
and associated attachments. Please submit a written response demonstrating your willingness to comply

with the items below within 30 days of receipt of this report.

Required Follow-Up:

1. AvilaBeach shall provide a timeline and description of how the outer seal of Tank 1, compromised
by the corroded cathodic protectors, will be repaired.

1|Page

E. Joaquin Esauivel, cHalR | ERiC OPPENHEIMER, EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

1180 Eugenia Place, Suite 200, Carpinteria, CA 83013 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



Water Boards  Avila Beach Community Services District 2024 Sanitary Survey

Additionally, the following recommendations have been made:

2. The DDW recommends that the roof vents of Tank 1 and Tank 2 be recoated to provide protection
against corrosion and further preserve the outer seal of the reservoir.

3. The DDW continues to recommend that reservoir inspections/cleaning be conducted no less than
every five years.

4. The DDW strongly recommends Avila Beach review and update their 2013 nitrification monitoring
plan as well as begin submitting monthly reporting of nitrifications results to the DDW.

As a reminder, Avila Beach is required to submit the following by the dates listed:
5. a Cross-Connection Control Plan by luly 1, 2025 to maintain compliance with the CCCPH.

6. A new round of lead and copper monitoring in 2025 during the months of June, July, August, or
September.
If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Dylan Kitao, Water Resource Control
Engineer, at (805) 594-6197 or dylan.kitao@waterboards.ca.gov.

Sincerely,
Digitally signéd
| by dasor
'/‘.; e CuaRBan
Daterd075.01.16
11:37:21,-08'00'
Jason Cunningham, P.E., District Engineer
Santa Barbara District Office
Division of Drinking Water

State Water Resources Control Board

Enclosures: 2024 Sanitary Survey Inspection Report
cc: San Luis Obispo County Environmental Health Services (w/o attachments)

2|Page

E. Joaquin Esquiver, cHAlR | ERic OPPENHEIMER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1180 Eugenia Place, Suite 200, Carpinteria, CA 93013 | www.waterboards.ca.gov



DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

Cah'for.m'a Regional Water AVi I a B eac h C SD ORDER R3-2017-0025
Qusiity Control Board, NPDES CA0047830
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001
s ot R Facility Month: JANUARY 2025
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly Monthly
: o |y (T (o o || a | ED | S | e i | B
ate Total Total Fecal Chiorine i se
{gpm) | ©@M) | cojiform | Coliform | Residual {24 HC) (24 HC) (24HC) | (24HC) (Grab)
1 0.074721 123 52 0.00 1/3/25 12 5.8 310 370
2 0.065474 112 45 0.00 1/9/25 <4.0 <56.0 250 320 <5.0
3 0.064556 120 45 20 <1.8 1.00 1/16/25 6.8 <6.0 300 220
4 0.060409 17 42 0.00 1/23/25 <4.0 <5.0 230 100
5 0.056208 112 39 0.00 1/30/25
6 0.052807 87 37 <1.8 <1.8 0.00 Min <4.0 <6.0 230 100 <5.0
7 0.045841 101 32 0.00 Mean 4.7 <6.0 272.5 262.5 <5.0
8 0.043370 79 30 0.00 Max 12 5.8 310 370 <5.0
9 0.042642 104 30 <1.8 <1.8 0.00 BOD Removal: 98.3% TSS Removal: 100.0%
10 | 0.048781 118 34 0.00 Effluent Monitoring
11 | 0057250 136 40 0.00 Weskly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date Set. Solids Turbidity pH Temp °F
12 | 0.064604 114 38 0.00 {Grab) (Grab) (Grab)* {Grab)
13 0.051006 132 35 6.8 20 0.00 1/3/25 <0.1 1.3 7.60 65.3
14 0.041998 89 29 0.00 1/9/25 <0.1 0.70 7.58 63.6
16 0.041894 97 29 0.00 1/16/26 <0.1 0.80 7.20 60.2
16 0.042191 81 29 <1.8 <1.8 0.00 1/23/25 <0.1 0.50 7.42 62.4
17 0.047056 118 33 0.00 1/30/28 7.06
18 0.068760 112 41 0.00 Min <0.1 0.50 7.06 60.2
19 0.064061 137 44 0.00 Mean <0.1 0.83 7.35 62.9
20 0.052906 123 37 0.00 | Max <0.1 1.3 7.58 65.3
21 0.038638 88 27 170 17 0.00 *Effluent pH samples were collected on 1/2, 1/10, 1/16, 1/24, and 1/30.
22 | 0.028978 32 20 0.00 Influent Brine Received Sludge Removal
23 0.035270 57 24 13 <1.8 0.00 Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons
24 0.037929 77 26 0.00 N/A N/A 113125 4,000
25 0.049419 86 34 0.00 117128 4,000
26 0.049020 0 34 0.00
27 | 0.046475 93 32 13 2,0 0.00 Efftuent Limits
28 0.040297 59 28 0.00 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg Daily Max
29 0.038183 60 27 0.00 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
30 0.042205 77 29 0.20 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
31 0.039071 68 27 0.00 Qil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
Min 0.028978 32 20 <1.8 <1.8 0.00 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Mean | 0.048775 96.6 33.8 25.6 26 0.04 7 Sample Median: 23
Max | 0.074721 137 52 170 17 1.00 Total Coliform 1':: :"L More than once in 30 days: 240
Total | 1.512018 Effluent daily (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Daily Maxiumum: 2,400
Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 l 1.2
pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
| certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and that Settleable Solids mU/L 1.0 15 3.0
the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility. BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% - =
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




California Regional Water
Quality Control Board,
Central Coast Region

Monthly report due last day of following month
Annual report due January 30

Avila Beach CSD

Wastewater Treatment

Facility

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING
ORDER R3-2017-0025
NPDES CA0047830
WDID 3 4060101001

Month: JANUARY 2025

Process Sampling

MBR MBR
Parameter .
(mglL) Influent Aeration
g (24HC) (grab)
Date 1/9/25 1/9/25
BOD
(mglL) % -
Total Suspended Solids 45 12,000
(mglL)
Volatile Suspended Solids . 9,800
(mgiL)

The process sampling results attached were required by the manufacturer for the first year of operation of the
WWTP. Avila Beach CSD staff have elected to continue monthly process sampling beyond this requirement to
monitor plant performance. The constituents/requency may change at the discretion of Avila Beach CSD.



HLNONW

ane NAr AVIN

03a AON 100 d3s ony ddv dYIN 934 NYf

| szozm vzoze ceoew zzozw |

(5202 - 22Z02)
MOT4 LIN3IN1443 d1LMM AIVA IOVHIAVY asdgV

0

000°0}

000'02

000'0€

000°0¥

000°0S

000'09

000'0Z

000'08

AVa d3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

- J3aa AON 100 d3s onvy anr NOP AVIA Hdv dYIN 934 Nvr o

f——1 000°005

r— 000°000'}
000°005°}
000'000°2
000'00S'2

| sz0zm vZ0z* €z0Z™ ZZOZH® |

(sz0Z - 2202)
MO14 IN3NT1443 d1MM TVLOL ATHINOW asogav

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

J3a AON 100 d3s onvy anr NP AVIN ddv HvIN g44 Nvr

=—

| szoz= vzoze czozm zzozs |

(5202 - 2202)
MOTd TVLOL ATHLNOI SINT NVS Ly0d

0

000'0§

000°00L

000°0SL

000°002

000°052

000'00€

000°05€

000°00%

000°05P

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

03d AON 1200 das ony anr NOF AVIA Hdv HVIN g34 NvT

| UBISeQ dIMM—— GZOZmem YZOZwww £ZO7Mmm ZZ07wm |

(gzozZ - Zz02)
aod IN3IN14NI 39VHIAVY ATHLNOW asogv

001

00z

00e

00v

00S

009

1/Bw




‘yuny Bupuodsi sayy ye ydeh ayy vo pejussesdsel ase senfea (GN) Joereq UON 80N

HLNOW
o3a AON 100 d3s onv Tnr NOF AV Hdv UV g34 NYT
=i 0
g
0l
Gl
0z
sz 3
Q@
Q
=
o¢
Ge
ov
oy
05

| Wwi sBesony Aeq Og—— GOz  pZ0ze  CCO7We  ZZ0Zmm

(5202 - 22072)
aod LN3aN1443 I39VIIAY ATHLNOW asosgayv




HLNOW

03a AON 120 d3s onv anre NAr AV dv v g34 NvF

| s20z vzoz= £20Zw ZZ0Z® |

(5202 - ZZ02)
Z3dO1 INOY4 AaASVYHO¥UNd ¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

000°'00§

000'000'L

000°00S'L

000°000°'C

000005

000°000°¢

000'005°€

000°000'%

SNOTIVO




HLNOW

NAr

J3a AON 120 d3s onvy anr AV HUdv dvIN 834 NvT

| sz0zm pzoz= £20Zm Z20ZW |

(5202 - 2202)
| ad10S ¥3LYM ATHLNOW asoav

000°00S

000°000°}

000'005°L

000°000°C

000'005°C

000'000'¢

SNOTIVO




AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors .\
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@
DATE: February 11, 2025

SUBJECT: FY 2024-2025 Mid-Year Budget Review

Recommendation:
Receive Report; Provide direction to staff on any adjustments for the approved FY 2024/2025

Budget.

Discussion:

In order to track District finances and to keep the Board and the public up to date with District
finances, staff prepares monthly Financial Review reports that are included in the agenda
packets. The monthly reports include a month end balance sheet, a summary of the checks
written, and a profit and loss statement. For the February Board packet, staff prepares a more
detailed “mid-year” budget review report for the current fiscal year through the end of January.
The mid-year review presents the overall budgeted and actual mid-year income and expenses, as
well as, the budgeted and actual mid-year income and expenses by fund class.

As of January 31, 2025 (the 58% benchmark) District income is at 70% of the budgeted amount
($2,005,500) and expenses are at 65% of the budgeted amount ($1,655,000). The District’s two
biggest income sources, Operating Revenue and County Taxes were both at 67% of their
respective budget amounts. Year-end interest income is projected to come in at approximately
$200,000, which is 40% over the budget amount of $125,000. Staff anticipates year-end
expenses will come in at about 95% of the budgeted amounts. The District operates with several
enterprise funds or fund “classes” and a General/Administration fund. Below is a summary of the
combined Operation and Maintenance budget followed by a fund-by-fund analysis.

Combined Operating Budget Summary:

Total FY 24-25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 2,005,500 $ 1,403,000 70%
Expenses $ 1,655,000 $ 1,091,000 65%




Administrative/General Fund

Total FY 24/25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 759,500 $ 473,000 62%
Expenses $ 693.600 $ 431.000 62%

Income for the Administrative/General budget comes from County taxes, interest income and
ambulance franchise fee income. The major Administrative/General Fund expense items
include: Cal Fire support services contract ($225,000); Payroll expenses ($180,000); Health &
Medical Premiums ($55,000); CalPERS expenses ($32,000) contract labor expenses ($60,000);
Legal expenses; Insurance premiums; Membership dues; and Accounting and Audit support.

Income for the Administrative/General Fund is slightly ahead of the 58% benchmark. This is
because property tax revenue is primarily received in January and May. Administrative expenses
are slightly above the 58% benchmark., Staff anticipates Administrative/General Fund income
and expenses will be on budget at the end of the fiscal year.

Street Light Fund
Total FY 24/25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 16,000 $ 13,800 85%
Expenses $ 15.500 $ 8.800 57%

The Street Lighting Fund income includes $16,000 of general fund tax revenues and
reimbursement of electrical costs from the Port San Luis Harbor District for their share of the
embarcadero wall lights. Expenses include electrical costs and periodic replacement of bulbs and
maintenance of fixtures. Staff anticipates that this fund will be on target for both budgeted
income and expenses at year end.

Solid Waste Fund
Total FY 24/25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 30,000 $ 15,400 51%
Expenses $ 26.500 $ 10,000 40%

The Solid Waste Fund is slightly below benchmark for income and well below benchmark for
expenses. Income from this fund goes primarily to fund Administrative/General Expenses for the
solid waste program and help with the District’s rate assistance program. The Solid Waste Fund
is funded through via franchise fees paid by South County Sanitary Services.



Sanitarv Fund

Total FY 24/25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 650,000 $ 523,000 80%
Expenses $ 455.000 $ 256.000 56%

Income for the Sanitary Fund is well above the 58% benchmark. Funding sources for the Sanitary
Fund include operating revenue, tax revenue and reimbursement from the Harbor District that covers
their fair share of the WWTP operating costs. Operating revenue and reimbursement revenue are at
the benchmark. Tax revenue is well above the benchmark. Staff will make a mid-year adjustment to
reduce the tax revenue for the remainder of the fiscal year. Our goal is to transfer only enough tax
revenues to balance out the Sanitary Fund expenses. Expenses for the Sanitary Fund are at
benchmark. Staff projects that Sanitary Fund year end income will be at or slightly above the
budgeted amounts due to higher-than-expected tax revenues and reimbursements from the Harbor
District. We project Sanitary expenses will be on or slightly below budget for the Sanitary Fund.

Water Fund
Total FY 24/25 Budget Actual Through 1-31-2025 % of Budget
Income $ 550,000 $ 376,000 68%
Expenses $ 474.500 $ 395.000 83 %

Income for the Water Fund is 10% above the 58% benchmark. Water sales revenue is 10% above the
budgeted amount and tax revenue is slightly above the budget amount. Staff will lower the
percentage of tax revenue that goes to the Water for the remainder of the fiscal year as needed to
balance the income. Water Fund expenses are 25% above the 58% benchmark. However, this is
typical. The major budget expenses for the water fund are the purchase of Lopez and State Water
with an approved budget of $175,000 for Lopez Water and $205,000 for State Water. The District
has paid all the annual Lopez and State Water fixed cost water fees for FY 2024/25.  Staff
anticipates the Water Fund income and expenses will be on budget at the end of the fiscal year.

Summary

Overall, the District remains in a consistent and secure financial position. Estimated FY 2024/25 tax
revenues are anticipated to come in slightly above the budget amount of $850,000; water and sewer
sales revenues are projected to come in on budget at approximately $900,000; and interest income is
projected to come in at approximately $50,000 over the budgeted amount due to the sustained higher

interest rates.

Total operating expenses are on the benchmark for the first half of the fiscal year. As we anticipated,
contract operation expenses have significantly decreased and payroll and benefit expenses have
increased due to the shift from contract operations to primarily in-house operations. One of the main
benefits is that we have a full-time Operations Supervisor that is also completing a good portion of
the routine O & M maintenance activities that were previously contracted out or not done at all.
Electrical costs at the WWTP have increased due to the MBR plant, but we are achieving much
higher effluent quality that will open water recycling opportunities. As of January 31, the Harbor
District has reimbursed the CSD approximately $67,000 in operational costs and $104,000 for their
share of capital improvement projects at the WWTP. This includes the Harbor District’s $72,000 for
\

the annual WWTP project loan payment.






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors —
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manag@
DATE: February 11, 2025

SUBJECT: Annual Review of District By-Laws

Recommendation:

Review the current By-Laws and any proposed changes by District legal counsel and
adopt the By-Laws for 2025 or provide other direction to staff.

Discussion:

In accordance with District Policy, the Board reviews the District By-Laws each year to
ensure that the By-Laws comply with any new legal requirements, ensure that they meet
the current needs of the District and to keep the information current in the scope of
operating the District and the Board meetings. Additionally, the District’s insurance
carrier (SDRMA) also provides “Credit Incentives” to our liability insurance premium if
the Board conducts an annual review of the By-Laws.

Attached is a copy of the Draft 2025 District By-Laws, for the Board’s review and
comment. Legal Counsel reviewed the By-Laws and provided recommended changes that
are highlighted. If the Board wishes more time to finalize their review, this item can be
carried forward to a future meeting for final action.

Attachment: 2025 Draft District By-Laws



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES
Updated February 2025

OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1 The officers of the Board of Directors are the President and Vice President.

1.2  The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as presiding officer at all
Board meetings. He/She shall have the same rights as the other Directors of the
Board in voting, introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any
discussion of questions that follow said actions.

13 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall
serve as presiding officer over all meetings of the Board. If the President and
Vice President of the Board are both absent, the remaining Directors present
shall select one of themselves to act as the presiding officer of the meeting.

1.4  The President and Vice President of the Board shall be elected annually at the
last meeting of each calendar year.

1.5 The term of office for the President and Vice President of the Board shall
commence on January 1 of the year immediately following their election.

1.6 Generally, the President, or in his/her absence the Vice President, is the
designated representative of the Board of Directors to speak on Board positions
or policies.

1.7 The Board President, or in his/her absence the Vice President, is authorized to
attend and is entitled to reimbursement, pursuant to Section 10 below, for his/her
attendance at a County or State Agency meetings upon his/her determination
that District representation is necessary to protect and/or advance the interest of
the District or its residents/customers.

MEETINGS

21 Regular Meetings
Subject to holidays and scheduling, Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall
be held on the second Tuesday of each calendar month at 1:00 PM in the Avila
Beach Community Services District Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach. The
date, time and place of regular Board meetings shall be reconsidered at the annual
organizational meeting of the Board.

2.2 Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the President or three (3) Directors with a
minimum of twenty-four (24) hours public notice. The Special meeting agenda
shall be prepared and distributed pursuant to the procedures of the Brown Act by
the General Manager in consultation with the President or in his or her absence,
the Vice President or those Directors calling the meeting.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

2.3 Closed Sessions

Closed sessions may be scheduled prior to or at the conclusion of regular
and/or special meetings.

2.4 Directors shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Board unless there
is good cause for absence.

2.5 The President, or in his/fher absence the Vice President, shall be the presiding
officer at District Board meetings. He/She shall conduct all meetings in a manner
consistent with the policies of the District. He/She shall determine the order in
which agenda items shall be considered for discussion and/or actions taken by
the Board. He/She shall vote on all questions and on roll call votes his/her name
shall be called last.

2.6  Three (3) Directors of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. When a quorum is lacking for a regular, adjourned, or special meeting,
the President, Vice President, or any Director shall adjourn such meeting; or, if
no Director is present, the District Secretary shall adjourn the meeting.

2.7 Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, a majority vote of the total
membership of the Board of Directors is required for the Board of Directors to

take action.

2.8 A roll call vote shall be taken upon the passage of all items considered by the
Board, and shall be entered in the minutes of the Board, showing those Directors
voting aye, those voting no, those not voting because of a conflict of interest or

absent.

29 Any person attending a meeting of the Board of Directors may record the
proceedings with an audio or video tape recorder or a still or motion picture
camera in the absence of a reasonable finding e presiding officer that the
recording cannot continue without disruptive noise, illumination, or obstruction of
view that constitutes or would constitute a disruption of the proceedings.

2.10 All video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture cameras (if used) shall remain
stationary and shall be located and operated from behind the public
speaker’s podium once the meeting begins. The presiding officer retains the
discretion to  alter these guidelines, including the authority to require that all
video tape recorders, still and/or motion picture cameras be located in the back
of the room.

RECONSIDERATION OF PRIOR BOARD ACTIONS

The following rules apply to reconsideration of prior Board actions.

3.1 After the passage of 9 months from the effective date of the motion, resolution, or
ordinance, the matter may be placed on the agenda pursuant to Section 5.1
below, or other provisions of the Brown Act.



3.2

3.3

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

Prior to the passage of 9 months, any member of the Board of Directors or the
General Manager may request the Board of Directors, by motion, to agree to
reconsider a prior Board action at a subsequent meeting of the Board.

The President of the Board of Directors, upon a determination that there is a
need to take immediate action, may place an item on the agenda for
reconsideration.

PUBLIC COMMENT AND RULES OF DECORUM

4.1

4.2

Public comment

Subject to the following rules, a block of 20 minutes is set aside for each agenda
item for public comment, including general public comment:

(a) Comments on agendized items should be held until the appropriate item
is called.

(b) Unless otherwise directed by the presiding officer, public comment shall
be presented from the podium.

(c) The person giving public comment shall state his/fher name and whether
or not he/she lives within the District boundary prior to giving his/her
comment. Public comment shall be directed to the presiding officer of the
Board.

(d) The presiding officer, after consideration of the length of the Agenda, the
nature of the Agenda item, and meeting limitations, may expand or further
limit the 20 minute time allocation for public comment.

(e) Each public commenter shall be limited to 3 minutes unless shortened or
extended by the presiding officer with consideration of the length of the
Agenda, the nature of the Agenda item, and meeting limitations.

Rules of Decorum

The rules of decorum, below, shall apply to public comment and attendance at
District meetings.

(a) Members of the audience shall not engage in disorderly or boisterous
conduct, including the utterance of loud, threatening or abusive language,
whistling, stamping of feet, clapping and talking (other than giving public
comment) or other acts which disrupts the orderly conduct of the District
meeting.

(b) Each person addressing the Board of Directors shall do so in an orderly
and civil manner and shall not engage in conduct which disrupts the
orderly conduct of the District meeting.



4.3

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
(9)

(h)

(i)

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

No person shall address the Board of Directors without first being
recognized by the presiding officer.

Public comment and public testimony shall be directed to the presiding
officer and shall be addressed to the Board of Directors as a whole. The
presiding officer shall determine whether, or in what manner, the District
will respond to questions.

Persons addressing the Board are limited to one opportunity per Agenda
item unless otherwise directed by the presiding officer in his/her
discretion.

A person cannot defer his/her time allocation to another person.

Persons addressing the Board shall confine the subject matter of their
comments to the Agenda item being considered by the Board of
Directors.

Each person addressing the Board of Directors shall do so in an orderly
and civil manner and shall not engage in conduct which disrupts the
orderly conduct of the District meeting.

The presiding officer may rule a speaker out of order who is unduly
repetitious or extending discussion of irrelevance.

Enforcement of Rules of Decorum

Any person who violates the Rules of Decorum may, at the discretion of the
residing oOffice, be removed from the meeting. The Rules of Decorum shall
be enforced in the following manner:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Warning. The presiding officer shall warn the person who is violating the
rules of decorum.

Expulsion. If after receiving a warning from the presiding officer, the
person persists in violating the rules of decorum, the presiding officer
shall order the person to leave the Board meeting room for the remainder
of the meeting.

Assisted Removal. If such person does not voluntarily remove
himself/herself, the presiding officer may order quest any law
enforcement officer who is on duty at the meeting, or who may be
summoned to the meeting, to remove the person from the Board room.

Restoration of Order. If order cannot be restored by the removal of
individuals who are disrupting the meeting, the Board meeting will be
continued under the provisions of Government Code Section 54957.9.




AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

4.4 Limitations (Government Code Section 549454.3(c))

The Rules of Decorum shall not be interpreted to prohibit public criticism of the
policies, procedures, programs or services of the District, or the acts or
omissions of the District Board of Directors.

5. AGENDAS

5.1 The General Manager, in cooperation with the Board President, shall prepare the
agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors. Any Director may call
the General Manager and request any item to be placed on the agenda no later than 4:00
P.M. on the Tuesday prior to the meeting date.

5.2 At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the District shall cause to be posted
an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted
or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session. A brief
general description of an item generally need not exceed 20 words. The agenda shall
specify the time and location of the regular meeting and shall be posted in a location that is
freely accessible to members of the public.

5.3 The agenda for a special meeting shall be posted at least 24 hours before the
meeting following the guidelines of Section 5.2 above.

54 In addition to the posting requirements set out above, regular meeting Agendas
and special meeting Agendas shall be posted on the District's web page and delivered to
individuals who have filed a written request with the District requesting the agendas
expressed an interest in receiving the Agendas (Interested Parties List).

5.5 Consent Agenda

Those items on the District Agenda which are considered to be of a routine and
non-controversial nature are placed on the “Consent Agenda”. These items shall
be approved, adopted, and accepted, etc. by one motion of the Board of
Directors; for example, approval of Minutes, approval of Warrants, various
Resolutions accepting developer improvements, minor budgetary items, status
reports, and routine District operations.

(a) Directors may request that any item listed under “Consent
Agenda” be removed from the “Consent Agenda”, and the Board
will then take action separately on that item. Members of the
public will be given an opportunity to comment on the “Consent
Agenda”; however, only a member of the Board of Directors can
remove an item from the “Consent Agenda”. Items which are
removed ( “pulled”) by Directors of the Board for discussion
will typically be heard after other “Consent Agenda” items are
approved unless the President chooses an earlier or later time.

(b) A Director may ask questions on any item on the “Consent
Agenda’. When a Director has a minor question for clarification



5.6

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

concerning a consent item which will not involve extended
discussion, the item may be discussed for clarification and the
questions will be addressed along with the rest of the “Consent
Agenda”. Directors are encouraged to seek clarifications from the
General Manager prior to the meeting if possible.

(c) When a Director wishes to consider/'pull" an item simply to
register a dissenting vote, or conflict of interest, the
Director shall inform the presiding officer that he/she wishes to
register a dissenting vote, or conflict of interest, on a
particular item without discussion. The item will be handled along
with the rest of the Consent Agenda, and the District Secretary
shall register a “no” vote, or conflict of interest, in  the  minutes
on the item identified by the Director.

No action or discussion may be taken on an item not on the posted agenda;
provided, however, matters deemed to be emergencies or of an urgent nature
may be added to the agenda under the procedures of the Brown Act. Pursuant
to the Brown Act d y Sr ac S iC y

(a) Directors may briefly respond to statements or questions from the
public;

(b) Directors may, on their own initiative or in response to public
questions, ask questions for clarification, provide references to
staff or other resources for information, or request staff to report
back at a subsequent meeting;

(c) The Board may take action to direct- the General Manager to
place a matter on a future agenda;

(d) Directors may make brief announcements or make a brief report
on his/her own activities under the Director Comment portion of
the Agenda.

6. PREPARATION OF MINUTES AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDINGS

6.1

The minutes of the Board shall be kept by the District Secretary and shall be neatly
produced and kept in a file for that purpose, with a record of each particular type of
business transacted set off in paragraphs with proper subheads. In addition to other
information that the Board may deem to be of importance

] / tes, the following information (if relevant)

shall be included in each meeting’s minutes:

Date, place and type of each meeting;
Directors present and absent by name;
Administrative staff present by name;
Call to order;

Time and name of late arriving Directors;



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

¢ Time and name of early departing Directors;

e Names of Directors absent or declaring a conflict of interest during any
Agenda item upon which action was taken;

¢ Approval of the minutes or modified minutes of preceding meetings;

e Approval of financial report

e Record by number (a sequential range is acceptable) of all warrants
approved for payment;

e Record of the vote of each Director on every action item for which the vote
was not unanimous, in which case the minutes shall reflect that the vote was
unanimous;

e Resolutions and ordinances described as to their substantive content and
sequential numbering;

e Record of all contracts and agreements, and their amendment, approved by
the Board;

e Approval of the annual budget;

e Approval of all polices, rules and/or regulations;

e Approval of all dispositions of District assets;

e Approval of all purchases of District assets; and,

e Time of meeting adjournment.

The minutes of the Board of Directors shall record the aye and no votes taken by
the members of the Board of Directors for the passage or denial of all
( ordinances, resolutions, or motions.

The District Secretary shall be required to make a record only of such business
as was actually considered by a vote of the Board and, except as provided in
Sections 6.4, 6.5, and 6.6 below, the District secretary shall not be required to
record any remarks of Directors or any other person.

The District Secretary shall attempt to record the names and general place of
residence of persons addressing the Board during general public comment.

Any Director may request for inclusion into the minutes brief comments pertinent
to an agenda item, only at the meeting in which the item is discussed. In
addition, the minutes shall include the names of speakers who provided public
comment on each agenda item and a summary of the Directors' reports.
Materials submitted with such comments shall be appended to the minutes at the
request of the General Manager, District Counsel, the Board President, or any
Director.

Whenever the Board acts in a quasi-judicial proceeding, such as in assessment
matters s, the District Secretary shall compile a summary of the
testimony of the witnesses.

At the Discretion of the Board President, an audio tape recording of regular and
special meetings of the Board of Directors may be made. Subject to equipment
malfunction, any recording of a District meeting made for whatever purpose at
the direction of the District shall be subject to inspection pursuant to the
California Public Records Act. Consistent with Government Code Section
54953.5(b), the District will maintain any recordings for a 30-day period after the
recording. In addition to the 30-day requirement, the District will attempt to



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

maintain any recordings, without legal obligation to do so, for 2 years after the
date of the recording.

7. DIRECTOR GUIDELINES

7.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Directors shall prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at meetings of the
Board of Directors. Directors are encouraged to seek clarification prior to the
meeting from the General Manager, if possible.

Members of the Board of Directors shall exercise their independent judgment on
behalf of the interest of the entire District, including the residents, property owners
and the public as a whole.

Directors shall always conduct themselves with courtesy to each other, to
staff and to members of the audience present at Board meetings.

Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-making process. Individuals have the
right to disagree with ideas and opinions, but without being disagreeable. Once the
Board of Directors takes action, dissenting Directors should not create barriers to the
implementation of said action.

Pursuant to Section 54952.2 of the Brown Act:

(a) Except during an open and public meeting, a majority of the Board of
Directors shall not use a series of communications of any kind, directly or
through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item
of business that is within the subject matter of the District.

(b) Subsection (a) above shall not be construed as preventing District
management staff from engaging in separate conversations or
communications with members of the District Board of Directors in order
to answer questions or provide information regarding a matter that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District, so long as that
management staff person does not communicate to members of the
Board of Directors the comments or positions of any other member or
members of the Board of Directors.

Directors shall not be prohibited by action of the Board of Directors from citing his
or her District affiliation or title in any endorsement or publication, so long as no
misrepresentation is made, or implied, about the District’s position on the issue.

Directors, by making a request to the General Manager, shall have access to
information relative to the operation of the District, including, but not limited to,
statistical information, information serving as the basis for certain actions of Staff,
justification for Staff recommendations, etc. If the General Manager cannot
timely provide the requested information by reason of information deficiency, or
major interruption in work schedules, work loads, and priorities, then the General
Manager shall inform the individual Director why the information is not or cannot
be made available. All Directors will receive a copy of all information being
distributed.



7.7

7.8

7.9

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

In handling complaints from residents or property owners within the District, or
other members of the public, Directors are encouraged to listen carefully to the
concerns, but the complaint should be referred to the General Manager for
processing and the District’s response, if any.

Directors, when seeking clarification of policy-related concerns, especially those
involving personnel, legal action, land acquisition and development, finances,
and programming, should refer said concerns directly to the General Manager.

Directors and General Manager should develop a working relationship so that
current issues, concerns and District projects can be discussed comfortably and

openly.

. AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the District. Apart from
his/her normal function as a part of this unit, Directors have no individual
authority. As individuals, Directors may not commit the District to any policy, act
or expenditure.

Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the District but are, rather, a
part of the body which represents and acts for the District as a whole.

The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is the formulation and
evaluation of policy. Routine matters concerning the operational aspects of the
District are to be delegated to professional staff members of the District.

Directors are responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in attaining its
goals and objectives.

. AUTHORITY OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

9.1

9.2

Pursuant to Government Code Section 61051, the General Manager shall be
responsible for all of the following:

(a) The implementation of the policies established by the Board of Directors
for the operation of the District.

(b) The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the District’s
employees, consistent with the employee relations system established by
the Board of Directors.

(c) The supervision of the District’s facilities and services.

(d) The supervision of the District’s finances.

The General Manager is appointed as the Board’s Secretary and Treasurer.



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

10. DIRECTOR REIMBURSEMENT

10.1

10.2

10.3

Subject to the following rules and budgetary limitations, each Director is
authorized to attend and is entitled to reimbursement for his/her actual and
necessary expenses (including the cost of programs and seminars), for his/her
attendance at programs, conferences, and seminars that are related to District

functions and/or Director development.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

All expenses that do not fall within the reimbursement policy set forth in Section
'10.1, above, shall be approved by the Board of Directors, at a public meeting,

It is the policy of the District to exercise prudence with respect to
hotel/motel accommodations. It is also the policy of the District for
Directors and staff to stay at the main hotel/motel location of a
conference, seminar, or class to gain maximum participation and
advantage of interaction with others whenever possible.

If lodging is in connection with a conference or organized
education activity, lodging costs shall not exceed the maximum
group rate published by the conference or activity sponsor,
provided that lodging at the group rate is available to the member
of the Board of Directors at the time of booking. If the group rate
is not available, the Director shall use lodging that is comparable
with the group rate. Personal phone calls, room service, and other
discretionary expenditures are not reimbursable.

Members of the Board of Directors shall use government and
group rates offered by a provider of transportation for travel when
available. Directors, using his/her private vehicle on District
business, shall be compensated at the prevailing IRS per diem
mileage rate.

Any Director traveling on District business shall receive, in addition
to transportation and lodging expenses, a per diem allowance to
cover ordinary expenses such as meals, refreshments and tips.
Reimbursement rates for meals will be pursuant to the current U.S.
General Services Administration (GSA) per diem rates for the
locale of the destination(s) except for meals included in the
registration fees for the conference, seminar or training activity.

All travel and other expenses for District business, conferences, or
seminars outside of the State of California shall require separate
Board authorization, with specific accountability as to how the
District shall benefit by such expenditure.

before the expense is incurred.

Board members shall submit an expense report on the District form within ten
(10) calendar days after incurring the expense. The expense report shall be

accompanied by receipts documenting each expense.

10



104

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

Members of the Board of Directors shall provide brief reports on the program,
conferences, and seminars attended at the expense of the District at the next
regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

11. ETHICS AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION TRAINING

1.1

11.2

Pursuant to Assembly Bill (AB) 1234 (Salinas, 2005, Local Agencies:
Compensation and Ethics); Assembly Bill 1825 (Reyes, 2004, Sexual
Harassment: Training and Education); AB 1661 (2016, McCarty, Local
Government: Sexual Harassment Prevention Training and Education); the
statutes added or amended by AB 1234, AB 1825 and AB 1661; and any other
statute or regulation with which the District must comply, all Directors and
designated District personnel shall receive at least 2 hours of Ethics Sexual
Harassment Prevention training every two years, or as frequently as is required
by law.

Each newly elected Board Member and designated District personnel shall
receive Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention training no later than one year
from the first day of service with the District and thereafter shall receive Ethics
and Sexual Harassment Prevention training at least once every two years, or as
frequently as is required by law.

12. COMMITTEES

121

Standing Committees

(a) The following shall be standing committees of the Board:
e Finance Committee;
e Personnel Committee;
e Facilities Committee;

e Drought Committee
(b) The Board may create other standing committees at its discretion.

(c) Standing committees shall be advisory committees to the Board of
Directors and shall not commit the District to any policy, act or
expenditure. Each standing committee may consider District-
related issues, on a continuing basis, assigned to it by the Board
of Directors. Members of the standing committees shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors.

(d)  All standing committee meetings shall be conducted as public
meetings in accordance with the of the Brown Act.

11



12.2

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

Ad Hoc Committees

The Board President may appoint such ad hoc committees as may be
deemed necessary or advisable by himself/herself and/or the Board. The
duties of the ad hoc committees shall be outlined at the time of
appointment, and the committee shall be considered dissolved when its
final report has been made.

13. CONFLICTS AND RELATED POLICY

13.1

13.2

13.3

State laws are in place which attempt to eliminate any action by a Director or the
District which may reflect a conflict of interest. The purpose of such laws and
regulations is to insure that all actions are taken in the public interest. Laws
which regulate conflicts are very complicated. The following provides a brief
policy summary of various conflict related laws. Directors are encouraged to
consult with District Legal Counsel and/or the FPPC at 1-800-ASK-FPPC (1-800-
275-3772), prior to the day of the meeting, if they have questions about a
particular agenda item.

Conflict of Interest

Each Director is encouraged to review the District Conflict Code on an annual
basis. The general rule is that an official may not participate in the making of a
governmental decision if it is: reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have
a material financial effect on the official or a member of his or her immediate
family or on an economic interest of the official, and the effect is distinguishable
from the effect on the public generally. Additionally, the FPPC regulations
relating to interests in real property have recently been changed. If the real
property in which the Director has an interest is located within 500 feet of the
boundaries of the property affected by decision, that interest is now deemed to
be directly involved in the decision.

Interest in Contracts, Government Code Section 1090.

The prohibitions of Government Code Section 1090 provide that the Board of
Directors may not contract with any business in which another Director has a
financial interest.

Incompatible Office, Government Code Section 1099.

The basic rule is that public policy requires that when the duties of two offices are
repugnant or overlap so that their exercise may require contradictory or
inconsistent action, to the detriment to the other public interest, their discharge by
one person is incompatible with that interest. When a Director is sworn in for
such a second office, he/she is simultaneously terminated from holding the first
office.

12



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

REVIEW OF GENERAL MANAGER & LEGAL COUNSEL CONTRACTS

141

14.2

The District's General Manager's contract shall be reviewed by the Board of
Directors annually during the months of April and/or May of each year.

The District's Legal Counsel's contract shall be reviewed by the Board of
Directors annually during the months of May and/or June of each year.

CONTINUING EDUCATION

Directors are encouraged to attend educational conferences and professional
meetings when the purposes of such activities are to improve District operation.
Subject to budgetary constraints, there is no limit to the number of Directors
attending a particular conference or seminar when it is apparent that their
attendance is beneficial to the District.

REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS

Any judicial review of any administrative act taken after a hearing by a district shall be
brought pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

MEMBERSHIP IN ASSOCIATIONS

171

17.2

17.3

17.4

The Board of Directors shall ordinarily hold membership in and attend meetings of
such national, state, and local associations as may exist which have applicability to
the functions of the District, and shall look upon such memberships as an opportunity
for in-service training.

The Board of Directors shall maintain membership in the California Special Districts
Association and shall insure that the annual dues are paid when due until otherwise
directed by the Board.

The Board of Directors shall maintain membership in the San Luis Obispo Chapter of
the California Special Districts Association and shall insure that the annual dues are

paid when due.

At the regular Board meeting, a member of the Board shall be selected to represent
the District in accordance with said chapter's constitution/bylaws, and another
member of the Board or staff.

BOARD BY-LAWS REVIEW POLICY

The Board By-Laws and Policies shall be reviewed annually at the first regular meeting
in February. The review shall be provided by District Counsel and ratified by Board

action.

13



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTOR
BOARD BY-LAWS AND POLICIES

Updated February 2025

19. RESTRICTIONS ON BY-LAWS

The rules contained herein shall govern the Board in all cases to which they are
applicable, and in which they are not inconsistent with State or Federal laws.

14






